ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2014
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Berta Gardner

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representati ve Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Dan Saddl er
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W/ son
Representative Harriet Drunmond

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
Al'l nmenbers present

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 139

"An Act increasing the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; repealing the
secondary st udent conpet ency exam nati on and rel ated
requirenents; relating to high school course credit earned
t hrough assessnent; relating to a college and career readiness
assessnment for secondary students; relating to charter school

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1- February 3, 2014



application appeals and program budgets; relating to residenti al
school applications; increasing the stipend for boarding schoo

students; extending unenploynent contributions for the Al aska
techni cal and vocational education program relating to earning
high school <credit for conpletion of vocational education
courses offered by institutions receiving technical and
vocational education program funding; relating to education tax
credits; making conformng anendnents; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 278

"An Act increasing the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; repealing the
secondary st udent conpet ency exam nati on and rel ated
requirenents; relating to high school course credit earned
t hrough assessnent; relating to a college and career readiness
assessnment for secondary students; relating to charter school
application appeals and program budgets; relating to residential
school applications; increasing the stipend for boarding schoo

students; extending unenploynment contributions for the Al aska
techni cal and vocational education program relating to earning
high school credit for conpletion of vocational education
courses offered by institutions receiving technical and
vocati onal education program funding; relating to education tax
credits; making conform ng anendnents; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 139

SHORT TITLE: EDUCATI ON: FUNDI NG/ TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRANG
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 24/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 14 (S) EDC, FIN
02/ 03/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 278
SHORT TITLE: EDUCATI ON: FUNDI NG TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRANG
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 24/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 14 (H EDC, FIN

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 2- February 3, 2014



02/ 03/ 14 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER

M KE HANLEY, Conm ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 139.

DI ANNE BLUVER, Commi ssi oner

Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent ( DOTPF)

Juneau, Al aska,

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided infornmation related to SB 139.

ANGELA RODELL, Commi ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided infornmation related to SB 139.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:01: 24 AM

CHAI R GARY STEVENS called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Education Standing Commttees to order at 8:00 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators Gardner, Stednman,
Huggi ns, Dunl eavy, and Chair Stevens, and Representatives
Saddl er, Rei nbol d, Seat on, Dr umond, and Chair Gattis.
Representatives Wl son and LeDoux arrived shortly thereafter.

SB 139- EDUCATI ON: FUNDI NG TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRANMS
HB 278- EDUCATI ON:  FUNDI NG TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRAMS

8:01:58 AM

CHAI R STEVENS announced that the only order of business would be
SB 139 [and HB 278]. He said it was his intent to hear the bil
and hold it in commttee.

Chair Gattis announced the arrival of Representatives LeDoux and
W | son.

8:03: 30 AM

M KE HANLEY, Conmm ssioner of the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), Juneau, Al aska, provided information
related to SB 139. He thanked the commttee for holding a joint
nmeeting in order to hear Alaska's Education Qpportunity Act. He
i ntroduced hinsel f.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- February 3, 2014



DI ANNE BLUMER, Commi ssioner, Departnent of Labor & W rkforce
Devel opnment ( DOTPF) , Juneau, Al aska, provided information
related to SB 139. She introduced herself.

ANGELA RODELL, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue, Juneau,
Al aska, provided information related to SB 139. She introduced
hersel f.

COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY  explained that the bill represents
col | aboration between the Departnments of Education, Labor, and
Adm nistration with a single goal in mnd, to strengthen

education in Alaska by expanding opportunity and renoving
barriers that are keeping schools and students from achi eving at
the highest |level possible. The legislation proposes specific
strategies to inprove education: expand opportunity by adding
options for students to test out for credits, allow ng students
to prove mastery in a course, rather than proving seat tine, and
strengthening residential and charter school program nodels. The
legislation will renove barriers by elimnating obsolete tests
and costs for assessnents that a student needs for college and
the workforce and for qualifying for the Alaska Performance
Schol arship. It will incentivize partnerships beyond the walls
of the classroom The legislation will provide greater access to
opportunities in public schools, neighborhood schools, and
alternative school s.

He said the benefit of partnerships includes those between
departments; three conm ssioners will testify today.

COWM SSI ONER BLUMER rel ated that DOTPF has |ong recogni zed that
college is not the only path to success, especially in Al aska.
O nore than 350,000 workers in Alaska's |abor force, only one
in five holds a job that requires a four-year degree or higher

Most of those jobs require post-secondary training, a
requirenment that will increase along with increases in oil and
gas projects. Alaska's comitnment to career and technica
education is critical to the state's ability to build a [ ocal
wor kf orce. Alaska is unique in that the |egislature authorizes a
dependabl e source of funding for career and technical education.

COW SSIONER BLUMER said in 2000 the departnent created a
Techni cal Educational Vocational Program (TVEP) to provide
grants to statewide job training institutions. In SB 139 there
is a focus on nore education opportunities in order to neet the
needs of all Alaskans. It reauthorizes TVEP through 2024 and

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- February 3, 2014



expands dual <credit options for high school graduation and
certification.

8:06: 54 AM

CHAIR STEVENS inquired if Comm ssioner Bluner anticipates a
change in the statistic that only one in five workers requires a
col | ege degree.

COM SSI ONER BLUMER opi ned that the nunber will change due to the
nunber of oil and gas projects on the horizon.

COM SSI ONER RODELL stressed the inportance of an educated
wor kforce in Alaska. She explained that SB 139 has two tax
credits that expand existing tax credits. She said it is
i nportant to engage business partners in this education effort.

8:08: 29 AM

COMM SSI ONER HANLEY referred to a briefing paper on sections of
SB 139 in nenbers' packets. He began with the subject of testing
out for credit in Section 1. He said the bill provides options
to traditional methods of teaching when students have already
met the outconmes of a subject. It requires school districts to
of fer high school students the opportunity to test out of a
class by proving mastery of the subject. Current |anguage
already provides for this. It states that a student is awarded
credit for achieving a passing grade by neeting the perfornmance
standards for a course of study as proscribed by the |[ocal
school board. SB 139 recognizes that this opportunity should be
provi ded to students.

COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY continued to explain that SB 139 also
recogni zes the challenges for districts to provide assessnents
for subjects such as debate or drama. That is why the bill
identifies only core areas of nmath, |anguage arts, science,
social studies, and world |anguages for which assessnents nust
be devel oped. Options for testing out of other areas are left up
i ndividual districts. He noted that world |anguages includes
Al aska Native | anguages.

8:11: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a student could test out of al
hi gh school courses and graduate early.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that was theoretically possible.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- February 3, 2014



He continued that Section 1 of the bill has an effective date of
July 1, 2015, which allows tine to devel op regul ati ons regardi ng
assessnents and allow districts to put the assessnents in place.

8:.12:32 AM

CHAIR GATTIS summarized the intent of the bill is to allow
school districts to provide assessnents for core subjects and
for any other subject they choose to all ow

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said that was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that current regulations require a
passing grade. He wondered if SB 139 requires the district to
assign a grade.

COW SSIONER HANLEY clarified that «current law allows the
district to determ ne a passing grade and SB 139 does not change
t hat .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a grade nust be assigned. He
poi nted out that the student's GPA woul d be affected.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said that is not the intent of the bill that
the district be required to issue a grade; the intent of the
bill is to prove mastery. It is permssible for a student to
test out and not be graded, or the district could assign a
gr ade.

8:15:40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if last year's final test in a
subj ect coul d be used.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said yes. It is up to the district to choose
the examto be used. He gave math as an exanpl e.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX confirnmed that it is up to the |ocal
school district to decide howto reflect mastery.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX voiced a concern about a school district
that would give a partial grade for class participation which
t he student woul d not be able to achieve.

8:18:29 AM

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said the bill addresses that issue. It is
designed to give credit for mastery, not penalize a student for
no class participation.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- February 3, 2014



He discussed the repeal of the high school exit exam HSGQE,
maintaining that it 1is unnecessary now that nore rigorous
standards and assessnents are in place. The bill provides an
assessnent choice that is nost relevant for a student's next
step beyond high school. Currently, juniors are required to take
Wor kKeys, a career aptitude test. The bill would allow students
to choose between WrkKeys or the SAT or ACT. Al three tests
are qualifiers for the Al aska Performance Schol arship (APS). The
state will pick up the cost of one admnistration of these
assessnments, elimnating the barrier of cost for the APS.

8:20: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVWOND asked if only one in five graduates
holds a job that require a coll ege degree, the SAT and ACT woul d
not be taken by nobst students. She inquired if the departnent
has plans to identify or devel op other tests.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY opined that WrkKeys provides testing for
career training and SAT and ACT are the recognized coll ege-bound
assessnments. At this tinme there is no plan to add nore test
choi ces.

8:22:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER clarified that the HSGQE was a test that
a student had to pass to receive a diploma, while the tests in
SB 139 are not.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that was correct. The bill noves from
having to pass a high stakes exam to an informational tool that
gi ves positive information.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what value HSGQE provided as an
accountability tool.

COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY explained that it was designed as a
gat ekeeper to ensure that students had mnimal skills. Since
then, the department has raised the bar with new standards and
ot her assessnents in place.

REPRESENTATI VE = SADDLER  asked si nce new standards wer e
i mpl enent ed under HSGQE, whether the scores have inproved.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY renmarked that new standards were put in

place in June 2012 and students have not been assessed yet, so
the full inpact of that shift has not been seen.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7 February 3, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER pointed out that the exit exam is no
| onger necessary.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. He said students with disabilities
were not passing the test and it does not provide rel evant data.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER requested seeing the nunbers on actual
success rates under HSGQE

8:25:57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX comrented that when the exit exam was
first nmandated, not enough students were passing so the
st andards were nade easi er.

COWM SSI ONER  SADDLER corrected that the standards did not
change; the assessnment changed. He shared the process for
adjusting the test. The deficiency of the test becane apparent
so it was redesigned.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for clarification regarding that the
standards did not change.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY reiterated his expl anation.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX concluded that the problem was not the
st andar ds.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY agreed that it was the assessnent.

8:29: 54 AM
COMM SSI ONER HANLEY added it was a challenge at the tine.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that WrkKeys was instituted at 11th
grade and the state pays for it. The level of qualification in
Wor kKeys goes on the student's transcript. He noted a student
can retake the test their senior year to inprove their skills
and score. He said he did not agree with elimnating the
Wor kKeys test requirenent by allowing students to select only
one test. He nmaintained it would take away an assessnent too
enpl oyers can use.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY | ooked at it in another way. Sonme students
don't take WrkKeys seriously because they know they are going
to college and they don't need that test. This bill allows
students to choose the nost rel evant test.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- February 3, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON maintained it was renoving an inportant
tool. Most kids do not go to college. H gh school transcripts
will only have one test score. It elimnates the one tool needed
for enpl oyees to assess job skills.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY anticipated that a student noving into a
career would take WrkKeys, whereas, college-bound students
woul d not.

8:35: 15 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON commented that she is pleased with the
test choices in the bill, especially for students who have

trouble taking tests. She testified in support of elimnating
the exit exam which she opined was not a true neasure of a
student's ability. She said she sees WrkKeys as an assessnent
tool for success. She suggested that students wll choose the
nost appropriate test.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agr eed.
CHAI R STEVENS asked when the exit exam becane | aw.
COW SSI ONER HANLEY said around 2002.

CHAI R STEVENS asked how honme school students would take the ACT
and SAT.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said the departnent is working with testing
conpani es to all ow hone-school ed students to take those tests at
testing centers.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND commented that she was on the Anchorage
School Board when the HSGQE was put into place and there was a
| ot of resistance from school districts. She requested a review
of the costs for the three tests. She inquired who is paying for
Wor kkeys currently. She suggested if all kids are taking
VWor kKeys now, t hat shoul d cont i nue. She agr eed Wi th
Representative Seaton's comments about continuing with WrkKeys
for all students for career readiness purposes. She wondered
about ot her suitable exans.

CHAI R STEVENS suggested proceeding with the presentation.

8:41: 25 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX questioned the wai ver.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- February 3, 2014



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY explained that currently a waiver is in
place to accommopdate students wth disabilities. A simlar
wai ver is under consideration for SB 139.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX questioned why students would need a
wai ver now if they do not have to pass the test.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said students with severe disabilities need
a waiver. In order to protect their integrity, they should not
have to sit through such assessnents.

8:43:31 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the exit exam will be required
t hrough 2017.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY expl ai ned that students who cannot pass the
exit exam earn a Certificate of Achievenent. They can return to
take the test within the next three years.

CHAI R STEVENS asked if students would take the exit exam this
year.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY sai d yes.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY explained how SB 139 relates to charter
schools. There are 27 charter school |aws, and charter schools
in 8 districts and in 13 different comunities. Charter schools
are public schools wthin school districts, wth additional
autonony and alternative strategies for teaching students.
Currently, an organized parent group or academc policy
committee proposes to a local school board to open a charter
school. There is a clear guide as to what that process requires,
however, if an application is denied at the local |evel, there
is no recourse for reconsideration of a charter school
appl i cation.

He expl ained that SB 139 provides that the first response at the
| ocal |evel, whether approved or denied, be in witing and be
based on fact and | aw That brings transparency and
accountability to the | ocal process.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if, wunder current law, there is a
ti meframe whereby the school district has to accept or deny a
charter school application. She maintained that the bill |eaves
it open indefinitely.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 10- February 3, 2014



COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY said theoretically that could happen. He
said he would | ook into it.

8:47:34 AM
COWM SSI ONER HANLEY continued to discuss integrity in the |oca
process. The bill allows for an appeal to the comm ssioner of

education if the <charter school application is denied. The
comm ssioner can remand the application back to the school
district for reconsideration, confirm the denial, or suggest
approval. The final approval remains with the State Board of
Educat i on.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked which law a charter school is
required to adhere to during the application process.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY clarified that current |law requires school
districts to have an open enrollnment policy and to treat all
students equally. For exanple, a charter school cannot refuse
students with special needs. Multitudes of |aws protect children
and their education.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a charter school has exam
requi renents for enroll ment.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that charter schools have a variety
of enrol |l nent methods: exam requirenments or open enrollnment or a
| ottery process.

8:50: 43 AM

SENATOR GARDNER inquired whether, under current practice, a
charter school can decline to accept a student when they cannot
neet the student's needs.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said no; as a public school, a charter
school is required to nmeet the needs of students. That exanple
woul d be a form of discrimnation.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMOND noted that the Bronx Hi gh School of
Science requires the passing of a test to be enrolled. It is a
part of New York City's public school system

CHAI R STEVENS pointed out the strong value of local control in
Al aska. He questioned how the departnent could force a district
to have a charter school if they decided not to accept an
application for one.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -11- February 3, 2014



COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed that the conm ssioner did not usually
interfere in such matters. He said if a local school board nade
a fair decision based on fact and substance of Ilaw, the
commi ssioner would uphold the decision. The bill is trying to
avoid a situation where a charter school has been counsel ed away
from applying. A comm ssioner would have to be very thoughtful
and work directly with the district to make a decision of
approval if an application had been deni ed.

8:53: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMVOND asked if the |ocal elected school board
denies a charter application, and the appeal to the comm ssioner
results in approval, whether the school board, the departnent,
or the state board nust provide the charter school's annual
program budget. She referred to page 6, line 6, in the bil
where it gives the conm ssioner power to approve an application;
"if a comm ssioner approves a charter school application.”

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY stated that the final approval lies with the
State Board of Educati on.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND requested clarification. She gave an
exanpl e of the Anchorage School Board denying a charter schoo

application and the departnment then approving the application
and asked where the governing and financial responsibility of
the charter school would fall - on the local school district or
on the state. She pointed out that the school district could
have denied the application due to lack of faith in the charter
school's fiscal plan. She questioned why the state would nake
the school district supervise and provide a budget for a charter
school under those circunstances.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY, speaking for hinself, said if a school
district stated that they could not afford a new charter school
it would be hard to approve the application and for the state
board to agree to it. If it was approved by the state board, the
| ocal school district would have to fund the charter school.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMVOND opined that it did not have anything to
do wth affordability because every student cones with a BSA
every charter school student is a public school student. She
poi nted out that the state supervises M. Edgeconbe H gh Schoo
and suggested the state could continue to do so. She enphasized
that she would be very reluctant, as a nmenber of a school board
that denied a charter school application, to be forced to
supervise and take responsibility for that charter school. She
suggested that the conversation continue because of the
unfairness to school boards.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -12- February 3, 2014



8:58: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wondered how often this situation m ght be
a problem He asked how nany charter school applications have
been deni ed.

COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY  said currently al | charter school
application denials and approvals nust be submtted to the state
board. He said he is not aware of any deni al s.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that many of the commttee nenbers are
former school board nmenbers. He pointed out that currently there
are artificial caps on charter schools in sone |ocations. He
gave an exanple of how teachers are assigned to charter schools.
He suggested updating charter school |aws.

9:01: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER requested clarification that a |ocal
school district has never had to accept a charter school
application over their objection.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said that is correct; there have been no
denial s of charter schools at the |ocal |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if charter schools require parenta
i nvol venent .

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said yes. Charter schools have sone autonony
and can choose their own principals and curricul um

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what happens with students who do
not have parents that can participate. She suggested that was
al so di scrimnation.

COM SSIONER  HANLEY said to this point it has not been
interpreted that way. He suggested |ooking at that issue outside
of the bill.

9:03: 32 AM

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY provided information about the funding of
charter schools. He remarked that SB 139 is not a proposal for
additional funding; it is clarity in the funding that should be
provided froma district. Charter school students generate funds
in the sane manner as students in neighborhood schools. Current
| anguage for funding found on page 7, line 3 says: "A |ocal
school board shall provide an approved charter school wth an
annual program budget. The budget shall be not less than the

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 13- February 3, 2014



anount generated by the students enrolled in the charter schoo

| ess adm nistrative costs retained by the |ocal school district,
determ ned by applying the indirect cost rate approved by the
Department of Education and Early Devel oprment." He remarked that
"the anount generated by students” has been open to
interpretation. Sonme school districts say it is sinply the BSA
and local contribution; sone say there are other conponents to
the funding fornmula. SB 139 states that the other conponents
need to be considered, such as special needs, vocational

technical, and pupil transportation, as well as funding for
capital inprovenents or facilities. The bill provides clarity of
| anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND referred to lines 10 to 16 on page 7 of
the bill. She said she did not understand how a charter school
generates funding for construction of a school if it is not done
t hrough the | ocal bonding process. She opined that construction
or mai ntenance of a charter school is a great addition; however,
she questioned where the funding cones fromif a charter schoo
rents or leases a facility. She pointed out that there are
several charter schools in Anchorage that use existing district
facilities and pay rent to the district for a school that has
al ready been paid for through the public funding process. She
noted she was the lone no vote on the Anchorage School Board
against doing it that way because kids at Rom g Mddle School
don't pay rent from their BSA for the building that the public
is paying for. She suggested that the bill should consider all
the different ways students are housed. Charter schools should
not spend BSA on the facility, which no other school is required
to do.

9:06: 40 AM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if charter schools receive the entire BSA
per student.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said charter school students generate funds
in the same nmanner as students in other public schools, so the
charter school should receive the entire BSA per student. The
| anguage in SB 139 provides equity between charter schools and
other schools beyond the BSA to other conponents of the
foundati on funding fornmul a.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked if language in the bill allows a

charter school to receive nore funding than it currently
recei ves.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -14- February 3, 2014



COM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that if the funding is equitably
now, there would be no difference.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON pointed out that some charter schools
pay a lease fee or rent, so if the bill passes, those charter
schools will get nore noney fromthe districts.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said theoretically. Once all the conponents
have been figured into the funding, if any have been w thheld,
the schools will now receive them

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON concluded that there would not be as
much noney for students in the regular schools. She requested a
"yes or no" answer.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said it depends. If a district is already
providing the funds to charter schools there would be no
difference; if the district is not fully funding the charter
schools, they wIll be receiving additional funds from the
district. He said the idea behind the bill 1is equity and
stabilization of funding for the charter schools. He said there
is no | anguage that would nmake charter schools super schools. He
stressed that the key language is that funds will be generated
"in the same manner” as for students in traditional schools.

9:10: 42 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said she wunderstood; some of the
charter schools now have to fund sone things regular schools do
not have to fund. She said she did not have a problem wth
charter schools receiving nore noney as a neasure of fairness.
However, the consequence is that students in regular schools
will receive less noney for instruction. She inquired how nany
charter schools are being unfairly funded now and how rmuch that
wi Il cost the regul ar schools.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY offered to look into that. He agreed that
nmoney may nove from the traditional schools to the charter
schools, but that neans that the charter schools have been
treated unequally.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON reiterated her question as to how many
regul ar schools will be affected. She thought an analysis could
be done.

SENATOR HUGA NS pointed out that facilities are the biggest cost

for charter schools. He highlighted the inequity between school s
in the form of charge-backs for services. He stressed the

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -15- February 3, 2014



i mportance of looking for techniques to nodernize charter
schools. He added that testing to get into schools also exists
in Al aska.

9:15: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked for an explanation of t he
transportation conponent, which is a district responsibility. He
asked if the transportation budget would be divided by the
nunmber of students and a percentage would go to the charter
school

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed that pupil transportation is not
required, but is a funding fornula conponent and varies by
district. A local district could provide funding in exchange for
t hat conponent as part of a contract between the charter schoo
and the district.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned the idea of splitting up
transportation funding for charter schools when it is not done
for regular schools.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said transportation funding is currently a
di sparity because charter students generate funds, but a schoo

district may not be providing transportation to a charter
school .

9:18: 42 AM
SENATOR GARDNER questioned giving transportation funding to
charter schools where students wal k and there is no bussing.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY di scussed residential schools. He said there
are currently seven approved residential schools in the state

He explained that currently, districts can only apply to open a
new residential school during open application periods. He said
he had an open application period |ast year based on perceived
needs and due to conversations with the legislature |ast year
regarding SB 47. None of the previous conm ssioners had opened
up an application period and there is no requirenment to do so.

He explained that the bill would require that DEED open an
annual application period. It would also require the boarding
stipend to reflect basic understanding of actual costs to house
and care for a student 24/7.

9:21: 08 AM
COWM SSI ONER HANLEY addressed the base student allocation (BSA)
i ncrease. The proposal in the bill is for an FY 15 BSA increase

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 16- February 3, 2014



of $85 per student which translates to about $21 mllion. This
allocation is in addition to the $25 nmillion one-tinme funding
included in the budget this year for energy and fixed costs. The
$58 BSA increase per student in FY 16 and FY 17 translates to
about $15.4 nillion each year.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND referred to the increase in the boarding
stipend to reflect true costs. She suggested that the BSA al so
reflect the true cost to educate students.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY commented that is a good conversation for
the |l egislature to have.

9:22:56 AM

COM SSIONER  BLUVER related that the nationwi de average
graduation rate for high school students who are enrolled in a
Techni cal Vocational Education Program (TVEP) is nore than 90
percent, conpared to 75 percent for students who don't
participate in that program In addition to reauthorizing TVEP
t hrough 2024, which sunsets in June 2014, the bill would require
institutions receiving TVEP funding to establish or nmaintain
partnerships or articulation agreenents with Al aska schools to
provi de the opportunity for Al askan youth to earn dual credits
at secondary and post-secondary | evels.

SENATOR GARDNER asked what percentage of Alaska students
enrolled in TVEP graduate.

COWMM SSI ONER BLUMER of fered to provide that nunber.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY presented information about the tax credits
in the bill. There are two opportunities for tax credits for
Al aska businesses; it allows the private sector to partner wth
| ocal school districts by funding scholarships to students
earning dual credit to defray costs of tuition, registration,
course and textbook fees, and for construction, maintenance or
operation of residential housing facilities.

9:26:18 AM

COWM SSI ONER RODELL explained how the tax credits work. A
busi ness taxpayer currently can take an education tax credit
against their tax liability. In 2013 universities and coll eges
benefitted by $3.8 nmillion and vocational schools benefitted by
over $3.3 mllion in tax credits for donations nmade for
resear ch, education support services, vocat i onal techni ca

education and training schools, education courses, prograns and
facilities. This bill continues the cap of $5 nmillion in tax

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -17- February 3, 2014



credits, but expands the qualifying donations to fund
scholarships for dual credit students and for residential
housi ng.

CHAI R STEVENS gave Conmi ssioner Hanley an opportunity to provide
concl udi ng remarks.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY summari zed t hat Al aska's Educati on
Qpportunity Act addresses specific targets in order to provide
greater opportunity, renove barriers, and thereby allow ng
students to access greater opportunity in public schools.

9:28: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON requested information about potenti al
funding changes to regular schools, such as transportation
costs.

SENATOR HUGGE NS t hanked the comm ssioner for the initiative for
residential schools. He credited the Native Corporations for
bringing the idea of the tax credits for education.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked why there are so many conponents in

one bill, and not separate bills for each conponent.

9:30: 03 AM

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY stated that the linkage of the conponents is
“inmproving education across the state.” He opined that there

needs to be a broad conversati on.

REPRESENTATI VE  SADDLER questioned whether the conversation
requires one bill and woul d not be possible with separate bills.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said no; it's a mnore conprehensive
conversati on when the conponents are conbi ned.

[SB 139 and HB 278 were held for further consideration.]
9:31:16 AM
CHAIR STEVENS adjourned the joint neeting of the Senate

Education Standing Conmittee and the House Education Standing
Conmittee at 9:31 a.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 18- February 3, 2014



